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Ileports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2017

I. KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMEN'T

(a) Background information
Technical University of Mombasa (TUM) is an ISO certified institution of Global Excellcnce

in Advancing Knowledge, Science and Technology. The origin can be traced back to the late

1940's, as the first institution of higher learning to be established in the coastal region of Kenya.

TUM has passed through four distinot phases to reach its current state. It operated as Mombasa

Institute of Muslim Eduoation (1948-1966), Mombasa Technical Institute (1966-1972),

Mombasa Polytechnic (1972-2007), Mombasa Polytechnic University College through a l.egal

Notice No. 160 of 2007 , and finally awarded the charter as Technical University of Mombasa

on 30th January 2013 (under the Universities Act2012).

TUM is profoundly cornmitted to upholding the quest to provide higher education as envisioned

by the founders. It has lour established Faculties and Schools namely Faculty of Applied and

Health Science, Faculty of Engineering and Technology, School of Business and School of

Humanities and Social Soiences. l'he University admits students across the globe ranging frorn

Kenya Universities and Colleges Central Placement Service (KUCCPS) to Self'-Sponsored

programmes. As a result of demand for TUM programmes, the student population has

tremendously grown over the years, and currently stands at 13,748, composed o1'9331 malcs

and 4420 females. TUM also recognizes the importance of human oapital in driving the vision

of the institution and boasts of 387 teaching staff and 423 administrative staff, giving a total of

810. To ensure programmes are congruent with the market demands, the University

incorporates industry. stakeholders and professional bodies in the development and review ol'

the programmes to comfortably offer solutions in the labour market, in the quest of supporting

Kenya Vision 2030.
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(b) I'rincipal Activitics

Vision
A University of global excellence in advancirrg Knowledge, Science and Tecluology

Mission

fo pro',ride and outstanding programmes by engaging in scholarly rcflcction, cultivating critical
thinking and advancing creative problem- solving skills in the flelds of engineering, thc
sciences. business and related areas that henefit society.

Motto

Irrndeavour and Acllieve (Jiddu 1'ajiddu)

Strategic Objcctives

i) Provide quality academic programmes
ii) Promote research, science, technology and innovation.
iii) Increase access and equity to tertiary and University education.
ii') Provide adequate facilities and infrastructure required by the expairdiitg Urriversity.
v) Prnvide irrforrn:rtinn cntttnttrrrinqtinn fpnhnnlnorr cnlrrtinnc fn crrnrrn'+ lo^.-ir-,rnri,,iri,..,./ ^\rrrr !v JqHpvr( rv4rrtlg6 clvllvlLtlJ

and management of the university.
vi) Institute a manpower and human resources management plan that maintains a competent

and efflcient workforce.
vii) Ensure quality and relevance in all programmes.

viii) Produce graduatcs with desirable attitudes to confront the various challenges in their
lives.

ix) Institute rnutually beneficial linkages and coliaborations.
x) Market Technical University of Mombasa as a leading brand name in training and

innovation in engineering, science and technology
xi) Provide a flnance mobilization plan that ensures a sustainable resource base for

development and recurrent expenditure.

(c) Key Management

'l'he university's day-to-day managernent is under the following key organs

Senate
[Jni versity Management Board

iiil
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(d) Fidu Management

The key
and who

OF MOMBASA
ancial Statements For the year ended June 30,2017

personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30ft June 2017
direct fiduciary responsibility were:

No.
l.
2.
3.
4.
5.

6.

7.

Designation
Ag. Vice Chancellor
DVC(AFP)
Ag. DVC(ARE)
Finance Officer
Registrar (AA)
Registrar(AP)
Ag.Procurement Manager

Name
-Prof. Laila U. Abubakar
- Prof. Joseph O.Rasowo
- Prof. Raphael N Mutuku
-CPA. Alfred Indeche
-Dr. Paul Njihia Gichuhi
-Dr. Kilungu Matata
-Ms. Susan Wanjiru Mwangi

Oversight Arrangements

Human Resource Management Committee of the Council.
Finance, Planning and General Purposes Committee of the Council.
Audit Committee of the Council.
Statutes and sealing Committee of the Council.
Executive Committee of the Council.
Full Council.



TECHNICAL UNIWRSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30,2017

(e) Registered OfIice and Place of Business

Technical university of Mombasa.
Tom Mboya Avenue,
P.O. Box 90420-80100,
Mombasa, KENYA

(f) Corporate Contacts

Ielephone : (254) 4l -2492222/3 / 4
Fax:254) 4l-2495632
Mobile: (254) 0724 9 5 537 7 /07 339 5 537 7

E-mail : info@tum.ac.ke,
vc@tum.ac.ke.

Website : www.tum.ac.ke

(g) Corporate Benkers

I.National bank of Kenya.
Nkrumatr Branch
P,O. Box 576-80100
Mombasa.

2. Co-operative Bank Limited
Nkrumah Branch
P.O.Box 87771-80100
Mombasa.

3. Standard Chartered bank Limited
Treasury Square Branch
P.O. Box 90170-80100
Mombasa.

4. Kenya Commercial Bank
Mvita Branch
P.O.Box 83534-80100
Mombasa.

5. Family Bank
Jomo Kenyatta Branch
P.O. Box 97268-80100
Mombasa.

6. Equity Bank
Digo Road Branch
P.O.Bank 90016-80100
Mombasa.
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(h) Indep Auditors

Auditor
Kenya Audit Office
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Anni
P.O. 30084

00GOP OO

Nairo Kenya

Legal Adviser

The A General
State w Office
Haram Avenue

Towers, University Way

P.O.
City

40Tt2
00200

, Kenya
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Ii. -i-iIE COTINCIL N,IEVIIIEITS

Dr. Kevit Desai - Clhairman ol'(louncil
lJ.0. lJ :'21) I 08 I i L) 6ti

1

Ms. Reatrice Kosgci -
D.O.B:

rr'. Lrcsilt, ltas a l'ltU dalvl.Sc. ln KOt_'rotrCS
L.,,,...----_- l'-^--:-- _--_-:.__- I i :-L('tlu(,1 sy5r.uil15 t)lltlltuut liltl. I1c l5 il

irrcrtrbci' oi'institutc oi iriectricai anti
I l!.'n1re.-i.^" Il'--i-,=.',-. -,-,.-,-.f.^.,.{' L',.,,, ..jl(brrl!li.)r q ltllrtlu!r \rl r\tll)4

IC'l' I'ederation, Patron Institute of Illcctrical
ancl l".lectronics l]ngineer, Ken1,s seclion and
i)roprietor Centurion systems limited,
[-ic C.irails iirii cor:ncri anci i unrei boarci.

Beatrice holds a ivlaster of Laws. Baclielor
o{'Laq,s. Diploma in l-au,. ['liglrer Diplonra
in I-lurnan ltesource Managen"ient &
Certiflcate in International 'l'rade &
Jlevekrprnent. She is c,;rrently the cr-rrrentll,
thc Cornpany Secrctary of Geothermal
I)cr,'cioprncni Company Linrited. She
prcviously worked for Kenya Trade
Network Agcncy, Agricultural Development
Cornoration. Libertv Assurance Contpanv-
I(osgei And Company Advocates. .lim
Clhoge AnC Contpany Adr,,ocates, Kcn1,'a
Industrial E,stzrtes, and the Attorney
Gcneral's Chambers.She has a wide
uxpcrience in iirigation, conve)/ancc.
r-:o nr m e rc i a I an rl c o rp<lrerl o,: I a rxl, L:ont lla n ).,
sccrctarial practice and management.she is a
Ccrtilled l)ublic Secrctlry ant! an aCvocutc
ol-the High CoLrrt of Kenya.
She Chairs I Iuman Resources lvlanaeentcnt.
Mrs Mrvololo holds an M.A. and B.A. in
Irconomics, and aiso a l,GI) in l)evclopn-rcnt
Planning ti'om the lJniversity oi'Nairobi.
Shc is currently a Chief F.conornist in the
Br,rdgct. Fiscal ancl Economic Affairs
I)irectoratc at the National -l'reasury. 

She is
spccializec{ in trade and rcgional integration
policy and has wiclc cxpcrience irr
ncgotiations ancl irnplcrlcnlzrtion of- tlic [;ast
African Comtnunity Custonrs Union anci tlrc
Ccrrnnton Markct l)rotocol. She prcvior_rsly
workcd in the N4inistry o('l)lanning and
National Devclopntent as an f..conornist irr
rurral clevelopnrent. In addition. shc
rcprcseuts thc i.jalional -l'reasurv in the
Naironai C'orrrrrriil.ec on Worlcl 'lrade

Orsarrizatior-r ncgotintions ancl thc lrA('-
[ :ttrrlpcan I i rt ion I :conont i c l)a rtnc--rshi;i
_^ .- -. : .-.i - -_

-rry
l' ':4 '6? 'I

-,.;;c!
Hs\ *irLlE

-)

Mrs. Alice N4u,ololo - IicpresentaLivc National
'l'rcasury.

I).O.[]: 61111966
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Ms. Butalanyi has a Master of philosophy in
Educational administration and
management. Currently she is the Dcputy
Director of University Education with 20yrs
experience in thc Education sector.

Ms Mutua, has a Master's in Education,
Bachelor of Education. She is a researcher
and devclopment practioner. Currcntly she is

a Teol.rnical Education Specialist with Save

the cliildren Kenya programme.
She Chairs Sealing and Statutes commiltee.

Mr. Flamid, has a Masters in Agricultural
economics, a Bachelor of sciencc in
Agriculture, a diploma in Range

mzrnagement. FIe has a wide range of skills
gained in a span of 30yrs working both in
Government and Non-Governmental
organisations in project management,
Resource utilisation and planning and
br"rdgeting.
He Chairs Audit committee.

Proll.aila Uweso Aburbakar has a PhD in Bio
Chemistry, Masters of sciencc in
Biociremistry & Chcmistry and a lJachclor of
Science (Biochemistry & Chemistry).
Secretary to the Council.8

I)rof . Laila [Jweso Abubzrkar
Chancellor/ Council Secrctarv
I).O l]: 1311211961

Mrs. I{ebecca K. Butalanyi Representative
Ministry ol Education Science and Technology.
D.O.B:

4

Ms. Jar-re Mbagi Mutua - Council Member
D.O.l]:1910211972

5

Mr. Harnid Abiyo Morowa - Council Member
D.O.B: 1710411948

I
t.i

6
fl, I

Arch. Mango, has a MSc. in Architecture, a

Higher diploma in Mechanical Iingineering
and a Diploma in Mechanical Engineering.
I{e is a member of the Board of rcgistration
of Architecture and quantity surveyors
(IIORAQS). LIe is a council mcmber o1'

Architecture chapter. FIe is the Chie I-

Executive Officer of Arch point consurlting
Architects.
He Chairs the Finanoe and general purposcs

comrnittee.

Arch. Alfred O. Mango - Council member
D.O.l]: 0711111967

7
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III. MANAGEMENT TEAM

Prof Laila Uweso
Chemistry, Ma.sters
Biochemistry & Chemistry
Science (Biochemistry &
She Chairs the Management

Prof. Laila Uweso Abubakar - Ag Vice-
Chancellor/ Council Secretary.
D.O.B: 13/l2l196l
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a PhD in Bio
science in
a Bachelor of

ttee.
)

PhD in Forest
I Engineering,

Corporate
of Kenya);
(Engineers

Institution of
of Kenya;

Academy of
St

Prof. Raphael N. Mutuku - Ag Deputy Vice
Chancellor(Academic, Research & Extension)

Prof. Joseph Ouma Rasowo - Deputy-Vice
Chancellor (Administration, Finance & planning)

2

a
J

Prof. Raphael N. Mutuku
and Wood sciences, MSc in
BSc (Hons.) in Civil
member (lnstitution of
Registered Professional
Board of Kenya); Fellow of
Construction Project
lvfeniber of lhe Kenya N
Sciences; Member of the
Institute of Kenya.

Prof. Joseph Ouma Rasowo
Aquatic Ecology/ Aquacul
Marine Ecology & Aquacul
Strategic Management, BSc
Zoology.

PhD in
MSc in
MBA in
Botany/ln

Dr.Gichuhi Paul Njihia - Registrar Academic
Affairs

4

Dr.Gichuhi Paul Njihia,
Pharmaceutical Synthetic
Analytical Chemistry, BSc.in

PhD in
, MSc in
stry

Kilungu - Registrar Administration an<j

Planni

5

Dr.Matata Kilungu, has phD
Resource Management, MBA
Resources Management, post
Diploma in Education.
(lomrnerce.

Human
Human

Graduate
lor of

ixl



,]
,t

i

i

i

t,
_i

il
iL

i

l-l
rl,]

ir

:- l

ir

i

l__r

I

ti

i "'t
i

l

rl

I

I

._.1

ri
I

r

ri

i

x I i).t r.

OF MOMBASA
Reports and Statements For the year ended June 30,2017

Mr. Alfred

6

- Finance Officer

Mr. Alfred Indeche has Master in Business
Administration (Finance), Bachelor of
Business Administration (Accounting) CPA
(K).
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'l'l:.-'I'-,'l-.,.;...-l I L,:..,.....1r.. ,.1 \.,1 .---L^^^ ,,'rI Ii..r t--^ .----- r .i irrr! rvvrrrlrLur r/rrrvLrlrrJv \,1 !vlu11!LrdL54(!L,rv(/ltdSpasscu tlll'ouglilourLranslilonal lg!'cls. liic,v,al.ious

phases it iras undergone so far reflect the Government of Kenya's concertecl efforts in prornoting

education and trainine in linc rvith the d,vttatnic tcchnological ancl industrial grorvt| irr Kenya anci in

AIiica.

lhe transitioti of'the [Jniversity has seeu tlie glowth of the uuriversity progralnmes, tite staff anci studept

popttiation, physicai infrastructure and IC'f. 'l'hc increase of these resources without a balancecl grorvth

in f-inancial support fi'orn the exchequer has however come with a number of challengcs. lt has been

dilficult to provide commensurate teaching resources with the grorvth in student numbers whilc the

r-ruivcrsity has also not been able to concentrate on the key areas of research apd technology transf-er.

While the mandate of the university provides for continuous growth to enhance higher education across

thc country, there have been challenges related to the infrastructural developments as the government

has not been providing the requisite capital cxpenditure. More so as the University brokc ground fbr

tltc ct;ttsit'uction o[tile Scirooi of Medicine. The Program wiii make I UM the first Llniversity along the

I(euvan Coast to offer degree courses in medicine .

.fhe 
201612017 financial statements reflect the financial status of the university, taking recognition of

tlic iticrease persulial ctttulurrtenLs Lhat were impiemcntcd towarcis tire eircl oithe year as a rcsult ot'the

coilective bargair-ring agreement between the public universities and the government tirrough the

Mlinistr-v Of Edtrcation. Science and T'echnology. Sustaining t.he increase personal cmoluiiicnts ivill
however be a challenge unless the government increases its financing for recurrent expenditure.
'l he University Oouncil looks forward to supportive collaboration with the government to cnsurc

cttnlinued development of the Technical University of Mombasa as providcd in its Charrer. In addition,

the plans to initiate Public Private Partnerships (PPPs), which will open opportunities for growth in

physical infrastructure to take care of student growth and the upcoming School of Medicine.

Dr. Kevit Dcsai
(lhairrrran of CounciI

xil
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V. REPORT OF THE VICE CI{ANCELLOR

The University of Mombasa, as part of its expansion strategy, has developed market drivert

programnles that address national priorities in the trelds of Business, Engineering, Science and

I'echnology. Currently, the University is oflering over a hundrcd and forty academic programs in

diverse fields and continues to develop new prograrrmes at both undcrgrac'luate and postgraduate levol.

l'his is in addition to restructuring some of its faculties so as to bring services closer to the customers

and other stakeholders. TUM is committed to the advancement of knowledge througl-r responsiblc

research and scholarship addressing irnportant scientific, social and cultural emerging issues of the new

century. Our emphasis on research, innovation, linkages and collaboration with various stakeholders

in the industry improves our visibility internationally.

To balance the development of new programmes and demand for LJniversity education, the l-lniversity

ntanager-nent, in consultation with the council, has continued to develop its human resollroe espccially

tlie teaching staff. Subsequently, during the year, the University spent almost Kshs 5 Million lbr stafl'

development especially in the academic field. 1'hrough this effort, the [Jniversity has been able to

support its staff to undertake lurther training. The results have been positive as most of the stalfhave

completed their studies and are playing a key role in teaching and programmes development.

'l'he University reported a decline in revenue from the internally generated funds. This has been

attributed mainly to the countrywide staff urnrest, thus affecting our academic calendar and student

enrolment. Nonetheless, the University has put measures to turn this arouncl which includes carying

out aggressive marketing for our programmes and improving service delivery to attract more students.

In addition, the Engineering Iloard of Kenya has accredited three engineering programmes for 1'UM

namely; Bachelor of Science in Civil Engir-reering, Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering and

Bachelor of Scienoe in Electrical and Electronics [:.ngineering.

'Ihe University has developed and implemented work place policies to nurture holistic students and

sta|. 'fowards this end, TUM has complicd towards gender and equality mainstreaming and alcohol

and drug abuse prevention and intervention. We assure our partners in the industry that the univcrsity

:ffireadytobcinthedriver'sscatinthetretnsformationofhighereducatiot-t.
Ag. Vice- Chancellor

xii 
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VI. CORPORz{IEGOVEIIF,IANCESTATEMENT

-I-..,,L..:.,.,1 ..-:-.......:.-. ^r [ /^---l-..^^ _ r-r: ." '' ul i"'iiiiilt)usa. a i)ui)llu ilrll\'(:rsit)'ln ilcilya, iS Coilltllitted tO Liiidel'tak€ tls uiiailS

itl a t'cspottribi" ,n,i lransparent tnanner. Tire university takes recognition of the various stakeholclers.

the fr-rnding agencies, and thc regulations thereto. rclating to its obligations as provideci in rhc

University Charter, 2013, and the Universities Act, 2012. For the 201612017 financial vear. rhe

ijntYersit)'has been in compliilnce with all thc pi'ovisions set out in tlie university Act,20i2, i1 so {ar

as iirc'y relatc to Llrriversii.ies.

'l'he lunctions and responsibilities of the Council are as provided for in the Statutes. These

responsibilities relate to the proper conduct of university business, policy development. strategic

planning, monitoring ef'fectiveness and performance, {lnance, audit, estate managemcnt, humarr

rcsource managelt')cnt, equality and diversity, student welfare, health and safbty ald tl"re appoinlmeni

ol' the [Jniversity OIficers.
't'l^.- rr^-.--.-:t t-^-- .r^ _i llc L,oui-icti ilas iiic ioilowing eornuiittees: Executive Committee; Audit Committee; Finance lrlannrng

aud Gcneral Purpose Committee: Human I{esources Management Committee; and Sealing and StatLrtcs

Committee. Ali sub committees meet as per the University Almanac and submit reports to the Ctouncil.
A- rl.^ f'^,,,"^;l .,,^ l.^,,., -^^-^.-^:l-:l:... a^-..---:.-.-:.-:.- - |/ r., r"w r.r.,rrrrvrrr rv! rr.LvL rL)purrsruiltr) rur lililllrrallilltB a SuuIlu Systcln ol lnlenlal control lnat suppolis

Lirc achieveiletit oi prolicies. aittts attd objectives, while safeguarding the purbiic anci other lunds apd

assets lor wirich \\'e are responsihle. in accordancc with the responsibilities assigned to the Council bi,

section 36 of the Universities Act,2012, and section l8 and l9 of the University Chafter., 2013.

'l'hc lJniversity Council is committed in ensuring financial sustainability; enhancing the studcpr

experience; and contintrously building its research excellence in support of the country ald regional

cconomy. 'fhe L)niversity has managed its budgets well, increased the teacliing and learping facilities.

dcvclopecl new nrarket driven programmes and is involved in technology transf'cr in its s key areas ol'

strength o1' Ilngineering. Science and Techr-rology.

l'lrc clay to day lrallagemer-rt oI the university is vested on the Senate and N{anagen-icnt Boarcl. 'l'6e

fLtnctions ol'the Management Board and Senate are as provided in the university chartcr and rhe

t-ttrivct'sitv statutcs. Mcetings ol'thc Scnate includc Itegular Senzitc. Senate I-loarcl ol'trxamir-rcrs. Spt:ciai

Scttiltc and I:xtraordinary Scnatc. 'I'hc Vice Chanccllor ol'the lJrrivcrsitl, is tlrc (tltairpersop of' bgiir

Se rurtr urrri l\,larragcntclt!.

riii 
I
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VII. MANAGEMEN'I'DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS
In the llnancial year ended 3Oth June, 2017,'fechnical university o1' Mombasa received from the

Government of Kenya a total of Kshs. 749,122,549 lor recurrent expenditure and was able to generate

Appropriation In Aid of Kshs. 769,365,500. This supported employees , the sturdent population and the

academic programmes focusing on Business Administration, Managetnent sciences, Flospitality and

Tourism. Liberal studies, Applied and Health Sciences and Engineering.

In the year under review the major obligation of the university was to settle supplier's bills and part

time lecturers brought forward frorn last semester, maintenance clf physical facilities and acquisition of

teaching materials.

In the same period the University received Kshs 18,743,280 to cater lor the Capital expenditure. '|hesc

funds were to fund the construction of School of medicine, Kwale campLis hostels and Customer carc.

Technical tJniversity of Mombasa strives to comply with all stalutory rcquirements. All paymcnts for

taxes deducted from stafT salaries and suppliers, pension, NI-llF' contributions and NSSF are always

rernitted on time to the relevant authorities. At the end of this financial period some payments were

still outstanding but they were settled in the succeeding month and within the stipulated time frame.

ln this financial year the University embarked on the construction o1'the fbllowing projects; School of

medicine, Kwale campus hostels and Customer care. These projects are viable as they will avail the

necessary infrastructure to the enable our students get the necessary training that will make then be

better citizens upon graduation.

Further the University was overseeing the construction of three TechnioaI training institutions nan-rely;

Kinango, Lungalunga and Fayya. Two of the three that is Kinango and l,r.rngalLrnga have becn

completed and handed over to their mentoring institutions. Thesc pro.iects are in line with Government

priorities of increasing opportunities of access to higher education, developing high level human

resources capacities in line with Ml-llF (Medium Term Expenditure lrramework).

'fechnical university of Mombasa like any other institution is exposed to a variety of risks associated

with day to day operations. These include credit, liquidity risks and changes in market prices.

Credit risk is related to outstanding lees balances fiom the students who might delault on thcir

contractual obligations to pay in tirne, which may result in flnancial loss to the lJniversity. In this ycar

tlre outstanding amount fiorn students was kshs. 57.384,6ii.'l'he nranagcntetrt is targeting to erlsure

that all students have nil balance by putting in place controls such no studcnt is allowcd to sit lirr
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examinations witliout ltonouring their contracttial obligations. Credit risk also arises fr"om casl a,d
cash equivalents and dcposits. ClttrrenLly the Univelsil,y does not havc significant concentlatiun ol'credit
risks as it deals rvith only well established and reputable financial institutions.

Liquidit),' risk, nlatlagctrtcrtl manages this by maintaining banking tacilities and through continuous
monitoring of budget and aotual cash flow.

As at jOth 'hrne 2017 Technica! Uni"'ersity of N'lombasa had peiidiiig bilis of kshs.2gi, 2TGJg4arisi'g
lrom unpaid supplier's invoices, unpaid part time teaching claims and other service provider,s dues.
'Ihough thc financial resources arc lirrrited as conlparecl with the University's daily needs, the u.iversity
is committed to reducing the pending bills over time.

The university is also currently servicing a bank loan with Barclays bank of Kenya. The outstanding
balance as at thc cnd of tlie financial year was Kshs. 63,350,000
'l'he University has a pending case in court whose determination will see the University pay unspecified
amount of money.

Following the implementation of the 201312017 Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA) the
lJniversity has not been able to implement the new salarv rates.

'fechnical University of Mombasa has no major financial improbity as per internal Audit/ TUM council 
I

Audit committee, external Auditors or any other National Government agencies providing oversight
Additionally. there are no other governance issues among the Council members an6 top management

including conflict of interest.

I

I
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VIII. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT/SUSTAINABILITY
REPORTING

In line with its mission and values, Technical University of Mombasa is sensitive to the impact of our

activities on our students, employees, partners and other stakeholders, as well as on the community

and on the environment.

The University is committed to the maintenance of principled standards, respect and accountability

across all its activities; equality and diversity; treating employees with fairness and respect, including

wide support of personnel and staff development activities; the development of practises, activities

and support systems that are environmentally sustainable; fair competition within the higher

eciucation sector; volunteering in community and county activities and interacting effectively and

positively with the county government, the national government and the wider community.

As provided within its mandate, the university is actively involved in research, innovation and

technology transfer. The research outputs are shared to the community through shows and exhibitions

and community exchange programmes. During the period, the University spent kshs l.5Million on

exhibitions that are meant to share new technologies to the industry and the communities in general.

The University shall continue to collaborate with all stakeholders on issues that benefit the

development of the country, growth of industries as well as giving back to the society. The Univcrsity

also shall continue to play its crucial role towards attainment of vision 2030 as spelt out in the

Government priority areas under the social and economic pillars.

,HxH,;,
Ag. Vice- Chancellor

xvi 
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Ix. REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

Thc Council submit tlteir report together with the autjited financial statements for
30,2017 which show the state of the University's affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the University are teaching and research.

Results

The results of the university for thc year ended June 30, 2afi areset out on page I

Council

The members of the councii who served during the year are shown on page vII &
with TUM statutes and the University Act.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit in accordance with the S
the Public Audit Act, 2003, which empowers the Auditor General to nominate other
out the audit on his behalf.

ffitr;il#.i**
Ag. Vice- Chancellor/ Council Secretary

Date:lSlot laotg
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X. STATEMENT OF COUNCIL RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 8l of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and section 14 of the State Corporations Act,
require the Council members to prepare financial statements in respect of the University, which give a
true and lair view of the state of affairs of the University at the end of the financial year and thc
operating results of the University for that period. The Council are also required to ensure that the
University keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial
position of the University. The Council are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
University.

The Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the University's financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University for and as at the end of the financial
year ended on June 30, 2017. This responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate financial
management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting
period; (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the entity; (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internalcontrols
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they are
free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv) safeguarding the assets of the
entity; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi) making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Council accept responsibility for the University financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required
by the PFM Act, 2012 and the State Corporations Act. The Council is of the opinion that the University
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of University's transactions during the financial
year ended June 30, 2017, and of the University's financial position as at that date. The Council further
confirm the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the University, which have becn
relied upon in the preparation of the University's financial statements as well as the adequacy of the
systems of intemal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Council to indicate that the University will not remain a going
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this slatement.

Approval of the financial statements

'fhe University financial statements were approved by the Board on 2017 and
signed on 

\
behalf by:

|.L"t til^bil_
Council Council

xviii I l'
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

P.O. Box 30084-00100

NAIROBI

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF
MOMBASA FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Technical University of
Mombasa set out on pages 1 to 30, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2017, and the statement of financial performance, statement
of change in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of
budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public
Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Technical University of Mombasa as at 30 June
2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis)
comply with the Public Universities Act, 2012.

ln addition, as required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, except for the matters
described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and Other Matter section of my report
based on the procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention
to cause me to believe that public money has not been applied laMully and in an
effective way.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.0 Presentation of Financial Statements

1.1 As previously reported and repeated in these financial statements, significant
accounting policies No. 3(p) to the financial statements on related parties does
not disclose the value of transactions between the University and TUM
Enterprises Limited in conformity with lnternational Public Sector Accounting
Standards No.20 which requires a disclosure of information about transactions
between the entity and its related parties.

ended 3O June 201/
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1.2 The statement of Director's responsibilities on page xviii is not signed.
Consequently, the financial statements presented for the year ended 30 June
2017 do not comply with the requirements of Kenya lnternational Public Sector
Accounting Standards Board.

2.0 Property, Plant and Equipment

2.1 Land in Dispute

As previously reported, the property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.2,675,U9,284 as at 30 June 2017 (2015120'16 Kshs.2,718,357,233) includes a
parcel of land LR No. Mombasa/BlocUXl/386 valued at Kshs.200 million of which
ownership is in dispute and the matter is on-going before a Court of Law. A review of
the matter in the current year indicates that the status has not changed since the
matter is in court. Although the University management is confident that the
University has a proper title to the property, it has not been possible to confirm
ownership on the property due to the dispute.

2.2 Freehold Land

Further and as reported in the year 201512016, included in property, plant and
equipment balance of kshs.2,675,649,284 as at 30 June 2017 is freehold land
balance of Kshs.1 ,O47,422,550. The balance of freehold land of Kshs.1 ,O47,422,550
include addition of Kshs.102,422,550 (2015/2016-Kshs 92,922,550 and 201412015-
Kshs 9,500,000) respectively. However, there was no evidence of the land having
been competitively sourced as required by the Public Procurement and Disposal Act,
2005 as tender opening minutes, tender evaluation and acceptance and inspection
reports were not availed for audit review. lt was also not clear how the land was
identified.

It is also not clear how the need and the suppliers were identified in the absence of a
pre-qualified list of suppliers and procurement plan.

2.3 Plant and Equipment- High Voltage Lab Equipment

An amount of kshs.175,767,710 being supply of High Voltage lab equipment has
been excluded from plant and equipment balance of Kshs143,558,274 as at 30 June
2017 and hence not captured in the financial statements. Further, the respective
creditor of the Kshs.175,767,710 has also been excluded from these financial
statements under note 22. The management has failed to disclose the equipment in
the financial statements.

Consequently, the propriety and completeness of Kshs.143, 558,274 on plant and
equipment as at 30 June 2017 could not be confirmed.

2
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2.4 Legal Fees

As previously reported, included in the additions of freehold land of
Kshs.102,422,550 as indicated in note 12 to the financial statement for the year
201512016 is legal fees amounting toKshs.10,136,950 paid to a law firm. However,
there was no evidence of competitive selection of the law firm as required by the
Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 2005 and neither was approval by the Attorney
General for the use of a private law firm availed for audit. !t was observed that the
law firm was added to the list of pre-qualified service providers in October, 2015
although the sale agreement was signed in January, 2015 nine (9) months after the
sale agreement had been signed. lt was not clear the role of the law firm in the land
transaction that had already been concluded.

2.5 Buildings

lncluded in the freehold land balance of Kshs.1 ,047,422,550 is a parcel of land
valued at Kshs.102,422,550 on which a telecommunication mast has been
constructed.

However, details of the lease rentals for the telecommunication mast have not be
availed for audit review.

2.6 Furniture

As previously reported, included in property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.2,675,649,284 as at 30 June 2017 (201512016 Kshs.2,718,357,233) are
additions totaling Kshs.107,850,973 made in the financial year 201312014. However,
the purchase of furniture and equipment at the cost of Kshs.2O, 905,377 and
Kshs.10, 729,921 respectively did not have any evidence of having been
competitively sourced as required by the Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 2005
as no tender opening minutes, tender evaluation, and acceptance and inspection
reports were availed for audit review.

2.7 Televlsion Sets

As previously reported, included in property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.2,675,649,284 as at 30 June 2017 (201512016- Kshs.2,718,357,233) were
additions during year 201412015 amounting to Kshs.346,826,307 net of work-in-
progress. The additions included procurement of five smart television sets at a total
cost of Kshs.4, 553,448. The audit revealed procurement was done through
requests for quotation contrary to Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 2005. ln
addition, the supplier delivered 65 inch-size instead of the 70 inch - size TV sets as
per the supply order

ended 30 June 201 7
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2.8 Prior Year Work in Progress

Also as previously reported, included in property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.2,675,649,284(201512016- Kshs.2,718,357,233) were additions amounting to
Kshs.346,826,307 net of work-in-progress which comprise of various procurements
made during the financial year 20141205. However, there was no approved
procurement plan and evidence of supplier prequalification for the financial year as
required by the Public Procurement and Disposal Act, 2005 and regulations thereof.
It is not clear how the need and the suppliers were identified in the absence of a pre-
qualified list of suppliers and procurement plan.

Further, included in property, plant and equipment balance of Kshs.2,675,649,284 as
at 30 June 2017 is additions of Kshs.123,142,111 net of work in progress acquired in
201512016. The additions' balance of Kshs.123,142,111 included furniture and
fittings of Kshs.3,183,618. Audit examination of the list of furniture and fittings
revealed that the balance included among others items like curtains, napkins,
mattresses totaling Kshs.2, 564,718 which do not qualify to be classified as property,
plant and equipment as per lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards 17.

2.9 Project Management Fees

As previously reported, property, plant and equipment balance amounting to
Kshs.2,675,649,284 (201512016- Kshs.2,718,357,233) include work in progress
balance of Kshs.42,717,651 (201512016 Kshs.21,845,298) which included
payments to various university staff amounting to Kshs.17,425,066 referred to as the
project management fees. However, it is not clear and the management has not
explained the basis for the payments and the supporting payment documents were
not availed for audit verification during the current audit.

ln addition, as previously reported, included in property, plant and equipment balance
of Kshs.2,675,649,284 (201512016- Kshs.2,718,357,233) is work in progress
balance of Kshs.42,717,651 (201512016 - Kshs.21,845,298). Work in Progress
includes an advance payment of Kshs.1,802,697 for library detective system.
However, the audit revealed that the work had not been completed, although
according to the agreement dated 12 February 2014, the work was supposed to have
been completed within 1 /, months from the date of signing the agreement.

2.10 Perimeter Fence

As previously reported, included in property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.2,675,649,284 as at 30 June 2017 is a balance of Kshs.42,717,651 in respect
of Work in progress. The work in progress balance of Kshs.42,717,651 include
expenditure amounting to Kshs.6,930,750 as at 30 June 2017 forthe construction of
a perimeter fence on Gotani land in Kaloleni. However, records available indicate
that the project was abandoned due to inability of the university to process ownership

Reytrl ofthe Auclitor-Generul on the Financial Slulemenl.s ol Technic'ul L/niversilt,tsl Mombasu.fbr the.veur
ended 30 June 20 I t
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document for the land donated by Kaloleni CDF. lt was not clear why the university
commenced fencing of land to which it had no title. ln addition, the probable costs
resulting from legal suits for termination of the contract have not been quantified and
determined in these financial statements. The public did not realize value for money
from the abandoned project.

ln the circumstances, the ownership, accuracy, propriety and completeness of
property, plant and equipment figure of Kshs.2,675,649,284 as at 30 June 2017
could not be confirmed.

2.11. Fully Depreciated Assets

As reported in the year 201512016 audit report, property, plant and equipment with
total cost of Kshs.1 17,102,254 were fully depreciated and there was no evidence that
they had been revalued as at 30 June 2017. Therefore, the economic value of these
assets has not been accounted for in these financial statements as they are carried
at nil value contrary to lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards No. 17.

Consequently, the accuracy, propriety and completeness of property, plant and
equipment figure of Kshs.2,676,649,284 as at 30 June 2017 could not be
ascertained.

3.0 Long-termlnvestments

3.1 TUM Enterprises Limited

The statement of financial position reflects long term investments balance of
Kshs12,324,338 as at 30 June 2017 which includes an amount of Kshs.5,571,938 in
respect of investment in TUM Enterprises Limited. The Memorandum and Articles of
Association for the Company incorporated on 7 August 2013 indicates that the
Company has an issued share capital of Kshs.S10,200 comprising of 5,102 shares,
5,100 directly owned by Technical University of Mombasa and two (2) are owned by
the University through the Vice-Chancellor and a council member. The management
presented financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 that had been
audited by a private auditor who was not appointed by the Auditor General contrary
to Section 47 of Public Audit Act 2015.

Under the circumstance, the accuracy and validity of the investment balance of
Kshs.5,571 ,938 as at 30 June 2017 could not be ascertained.

3.2 Fixed Deposit National Bank of Kenya

Note 20 to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 reflects fixed
deposit at National Bank of Kenya amounting to Kshs.1 ,752,400. However, the
supporting documents availed for audit review supported an amount of
Kshs.1 ,275,000 resulting to unexplained variance of Kshs.477,400.

endetl 30 .lune 20I 7
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Consequently, the accuracy and completeness of fixed deposit at National bank of
Kenya balance of Kshs.1,752,400 for the year ended 30 June 2017 could not be
confirmed.

4.0 Receivables from Exchange Transactions

4.'l Student Debtors

The receivables from exchange transactions balance of Kshs.72,762,827 as at 30
June 2017 are student debtors balances of Kshs.57,423,118 which increased from
Kshs.33,218,139 of previous year.

It was not clear why the student debtors increased tremendously and how the
management intends to recover these debts.

4.2 Guest Accommodation Debtors

Note 16 to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 reflects
Guest Accommodation debtors balance of Kshs.11,378,163 as compared to the
previous year balance of Kshs.7,192,748.

The management has not explained how it intends to recover these debts

4.3 Provision for Doubtfu! Debts

The balance of receivables from exchange transactions of Kshs.72,762,827 as at 30
June 2017 is net of general provision for bad and doubtful debt amounting to
Kshs.35,410,246 which is 49% of the outstanding accounts receivable including staff
advances totaling to Kshs.345,914. However, there is no specific provision for the
impairment of debts that have been outstanding for very long period which may never
be recovered.
Consequently, the adequacy of the provision of Kshs.35,410,246 as at 30 June is
doubtful.

5.0. Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions

Receivables from non-exchange transactions balance of Kshs.4,545,344 includes
other debtors amounting to Kshs.1,400,470 out of which Kshs.1,331,000 is a
receivable from staff as a surcharge in respect of payroll fraud perpetrated by the
concerned staff. However, the total amount that could have been lost out of the fraud
and hence recoverable from the concerned staff has not been quantified as forensic
audit has not been carried out.

Reporl rt lhe Audilor-Generul on the f inunc'ial Slutemenl.s ol Technic'ul Universily rt Mombasa liy lhe veur
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Consequently, the accuracy and completeness of other debtor's figure of
Kshs.1 ,400,470 as at 30 June 2017 could not be ascertained.

6.0 Other Creditors

6.1 Unpaid Pension

The other creditors balance of Kshs.134,214,905 as at 30 June 2017 excludes an
amount of Kshs.39,195,284 in respect of unpaid employer pension contribution
arising from the collective Bargaining Agreement signed between the management of
public universities and the trade union in April, 2014. The management, however,
deducted and remitted the employee contribution which effectively created an
obligation on the University to remit the employer's contribution in line with the rules
of the pension scheme.

6.2. Long Outstanding Payables

The balance of other creditors of Kshs.134,214,905 as at 30 June 2017 includes long
outstanding payables amounting to Kshs.1 ,815,270 in respect of VAT retained,
unclaimed wages, CDF, other depositors, foreign examinations CILT and salary
advance refund. There was no satisfactory explanation as to why the debts had not
been settled.

6.3 StatutoryDeductions

The other creditors balance of Kshs.134,214,905 as at 30 June 2017 includes
unremitted taxes amounting to Kshs.43,338,715 comprising of PAYE of
Kshs.39,385,391, VAT of Kshs.2,917,852, and withholding tax amounting to
Kshs.1 ,035,472 thatwere due and payable. The University runs a restaurantand is
registered for Value Added Tax and Tourism Development Fund. The management
has paid the Tourism Development Levy and amounts due to Kenya Revenue
Authority for the current year 20161 2017 though the arrears for the year 2015/2016 is
still outstanding. lt is not clear and the management has not explained how the
amount of levy or tax payable including the penalties have been accounted for in
these fi nancial statements.

Under the circumstance, the accuracy and completeness of other creditors' balance
of Kshs.134,214,905 could not be ascertained.

7.0 Sports Activities Dean of Students

Note 10 to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 reflects sports
activities dean of students expenses amounting to Kshs.3,809,670. However, this
balance includes an amount of Kshs.1,091 ,120 in respect to subsistence allowance
whose supporting documents were not availed for audit review.

ended 30 .lune 20 l7
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Consequently, the propriety of sports activities dean of students expenditure of
Kshs.1 ,091 ,12O could not be ascertained.

8.0 Long Term Liabilities

Note 23 to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 reflects students
caution money amounting to Kshs.12,976,178. However, no supporting schedules
were availed for audit review.

ln the circumstance, the accuracy and completeness of students caution money
balance of Kshs.12,976,178 could not be confirmed.

9.0 Professional Services Central Vote - Legal Fees

Note 8 to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 reflects
professional services central vote balance of Kshs.9,574,686 which was used in
payment of legal services provided to the University. However, no approval from the
Attorney General as required by the Circular No. AG/CONF/6/E/247 VOLII which
requires that State Corporations should get approval and authority from Attorney
General before incurring expenditure on legal fees.

Consequently, the propriety and completeness of professional services balance of
Kshs.9,574,686 could not be confirmed.

10.0 Financial Performance

The statement of financial performance reflects a deficit of Kshs.60,474,983 for the
year ended 30 June 2017, (201512016: deficit - Kshs.104,093,172). This results to
accumulated losses of Kshs.181,544,405 in the statement of financial position as at
30 June 2017. The continued operations of the University as a going concern is
dependent on financial support from the government and creditors.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of Technical University of Mombasa in
accordance with ISSAI 30 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. Except for the matters described

cndctl 30 .lune 2017
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in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and Other Matter section of my report, I have
determined that there are no Key Audit Matters to communicate in my report.

Other Matter

1. Budgetary Contro! and Performance

'1.1 lnternally Generated lncome

The management had budgeted to collect internally generated income of
Kshs.982,367,444. However, the actual collection during the financial year was
Kshs.796,360,420 resulting to an under-collection of Kshs.213,007,035 or 1.3o/o.

The management has not explained why it could not meet its revenue collection
target and how it intends to recover the shortfall.

1.2 Unauthorized expenditure

The management budgeted to spend Kshs.113,825,380. However the actual
expenditure was Kshs.123,599,800 thus resulting to unauthorized over expenditure
of Kshs.9,774,420 as listed below.

The over expenditure of Kshs.9,774,420 required approval by the council but no
evidence was availed for audit verification..

Report d'the Auditor-General on lhe Financial Statements ol Technical Univer.sity rt Mombasa.lor the year
ended 30 .lune 201 7
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Approved
Budget

Kshs

Actual
Expenditure

KShs

Over
Expenditure

Kshs

Medical lnsurance 85.000.000 87,098,916 2,098,916
Responsibility
Allowance 14,000,000 14,971,000 971.000
Non Practising
Allowance 2,500,000 2,652,000 152,000

Telephone Allowance 7,500,000 7,939,960 439,960

Acting Allowance 825,380 1,079,058 253.678

Hardship Allowance 941,140 941,140
General insurance 4,000,000 8,9',17,726 4,917,726

TOTAL 113,825,380 123,599,800 9,774,420



The management has not explained why it overspent on the budget in the above
items most of which are allowances.

1.3 Budget Absorption

The University had a total recurrent budget of Kshs.1,663,512,857 voted for the
financial year 201612017 while actual expenditure amounted to Kshs.1,476,237 ,372,
resulting to under-absorption of Kshs.187,275,485 or 11o/o of the budget as
summarized below:

The University had an overall under-utilization of the budget amounting to
Kshs.187,275,485 or 11% thus negatively affecting the delivery of goods and
services to the student and staff of the University.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting
Standards (Accrual Basis) and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
University's ability to continue as a going concern/ sustain services, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern/ sustainability of services and using the

Report of the Auditor-Generul on the Financiul Stdtemenls o/ Tec'hnic'al Universitl'o/ Mombusa.for lhe yeur
endacl 30 June 201 t

Item
Approved
Budget (Kshs.)

Actual
Expenditure
(Kshs.)

Under
Absorption in
(Kshs.)

Under
Absorption

lYol
Personal

Emoluments 1.062.665,392
1,004,356,739 58,308,653 5o/o

Council
Expenses 20,000,004

13,541,977 6,458,027 32o/o

Operating/
Administration
expenses 268,912,796

186,646,559 82,266,237 31%

Teaching
expenses 275,834,657

239,800,000 36,034,657 13%

Students
welfare 14,100,000

13,690,778 409,222 3%

Repairs and
Maintenance 22,000,008

18,201,319 3,798,689 17o/o

Tota! 1,663,512,857 1,476,237,372 187,275,485 11%

10



applicable basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the
University or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the University's
financial reporting process.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the
provisions of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in
compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
lSSAls will always detect a material misstatement and weakness when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

a

a

o

a

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and for the purpose of
giving an assurance on the effectiveness of the Technical University of
Mombasa's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant

Report d the Audilor-General on the f inanc'ial Slutements ol lec'hnical Universily ul Momhasa.fot'the vear
ended 30.lune 2017

LL



o

a

doubt on the Technical University of Mombasa's ability to continue as a going
concern or to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I

am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Technical
University of Mombasa's to cease as a going concern or to continue to sustain its
services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
and business activities of the Technical University of Mombasa to express an
opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

ln my opinion, adequate accounting records have been kept by the Technical
University of Mombasa, so far as appears from the examination of those
records; and,

Report d lhe Audilrtr-Generul on lhe Finctnc'iul Slatcmcnts d Tec'hnic'ul Univer,sity'ol Mombu.sa./itr thc vear
endccl 30 .lune 20I 7

I communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide management with a statement that I have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by Public Universities Act, 2012,1 report based on my audit, that

I have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit;

il

12
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Technical University of Mombasa's financial statements are in agreement
the accounting records and returns.

FCPA

Nairobi

18 May I

R. O. Ouko, CBS

ended 30 June l7
on
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TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2017

XIT. STATEMBNT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2OI7

2017 2016

REVENI.JE NOTES Kshs. Kshs.

REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGETRANSACTIONS

GOK GRANTS 3 749,t22,549 760,994,985

TOTAL REVENUE FROM NON-EXCHANGE
.TRANSACTIONS 749,122,549 760.994,985

REVENUE FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

OTHER INCOME 4 233.613.162 t91.742,331

TUITION FEES 5 535,747,258 453,892,626

TOTAL INCOME 1.518.482.969 1,412,629,942

EXPENSES

PERSONAL EMOLUMENTS 6 1,004,356,739 966,305,561

COLINCIL EXPENSES 7 13,541,971 13,591 ,182

OPERATING /ADM INI STRATION EXPENSES 8 r86.646,559 171,435,733

TEACHING EXPENSES 9 239,800,000 238,751,29s

5,476,919S'TUDENTS WELFARE l0 t3.690,718

REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE ll 18,201,3 l9 15.841.431

DEPRECIATION t2 93,045,742 90.385,061

AMORTIZATION l3 I ,061,736 3,081,614

AUDIT FEES t4 r ,160,000 I, r60,000

PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS t6 7,453,t02 4.67 6.3 t2

1,578,957,952 1.516,723,114

DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR -60.474,983 -104,093,172

PROF. I,AII,A T]WESO ABTIBAKAR

A(;. VI(]t] (--[IANCET,LOR / COTINCIL SE,CIIF]1-AR}'

(]PA At,F'ItI]D IND!](]I IT]

[-INAN(]t' OI.-FICER

I(IPAK MUMBER NtrMIlEIt: 7823

DII. KEVI'[ DES^I.

.nr,*rrrrff.

,rrr*....r2. uSICN

DAl'E I Ir,l:^lNr,
OUOne
\r Lt l"a.lg

I-o'f"n"
l' r)A't rl I)A'tIt.......

'l'he notes set out on pagcs 6 to 33 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

1l
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-f r;i'I.f ,\l t/'/, Ititrt/r)norrrt  11 t.^, t,vtrlrlr_far- l.lltt tt rtr)l I r 1)I, lylulylItAsA
Reports and Financial statements F'or the year ended June 30, 2017

XII. S'I'ATEN{IiNT Otr FIN,,NN CIAL POSIT ION AS AT 30 JTrNE 2OI7

ASSE'I'S

CURRENT ASSETS
IlII rnrrT^h rn^r!\vftl\l(I(tl.t)

I5
RECEIVAT]LES IJROM EXCI-IANCE TRANSACTIONS

A

C'hulirrrran of the
Dr. l(evit Desai

RECEIVAI]LES I.'ROM NON I]XCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

CASH & BANK I]AI-ANCI]S

SHORT-].[Rivi INVESTMEN I'S

TOTA L CURRENT ASSE'I'S

NON - CI]RRENT N SSE'TS

O'I'I{ER IJTJNDS & RESEIiVES

.I'OTAL NET ASSE'TS

.I'OTAI. 
NF]T ASSE'TS AND LIABILITIES

'l'hc Financial Staterncnts set out on pages I to -5,,vere signed on behalf of the Boarcl of L)irc:ctors b)z:

l6

17

Ag. Vice Chancellor
I']rol. [..aila l]. AbLtbal<ar

[rinance Of I]cer
CPA. Alfred Indeche
ICPAK Mernber Number: 7823

Sien

I

t

2017

li

2016

Kshs,NOTES Kshs.

I4,005, t 58

72,162.827

29.395 ,972

71.s34:9y).

6,207,6274,545,344

l8 _ 257,639,643

0

234.325.s81

19 20

367,9_q7,519348,952,972

PROPERTY ,PLAN'| & EQUTPMEN.f

INTANGII]LE ASSETS
l2

r3

2,675,649.284

1.472.901 r,753,208
LONC-'f ERM INVESTMENTS

1'O'I'AI. NON CTJRRENT ASSETS

20 12,324,338 14,0i9,662

2,6E9,116,523 2,734,1 90,1 03
TOTAI, ASSETS

3,0J8,J99.495 3,102,177.662
CURREN'I' LIAtsILITIES

T'RADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
n 'Tr rrh

1'OT'AI, CURREN"I' LIABI I,ITI ES

NON-CUII.RENT LIABI LIT'I ES

LONC-TERM I,IABILITIES

2t 27.062.264 26.182.313

22 t34,214,905

161,277 ,169

206,393.004

232,5,15,317

88,283.897 108,424,84923
'TO'TAI, NON-CURRENT LIABI L ITIES
'[O'I'AL LIABILI'IIES
NE'I'ASSETS

CAPITAL F'TJND

-- 
qq,Z$,!92

249,56L066

108,424,949

341,000,166

24 2,970,382,934 2,959,160,t62

25 - 181,544,405 -t97,982,666

2,799,939,429 2,761,177,496

3,039,399,495 3,102, I 77,662

2l

$-h-l \"

t\
u or.t{k Itr/



TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30' 2017

XIII. STA OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNB 2OI7

Development Grant

Development grants are monies received from the Government to facilitate the growth of the University

J'hese monies are used in improving and developing the University's infrastructure.

TOTAI,
CAPITAL

FUND
OTHER FUNDS
& RESERVES

2,769,597,6852.858.199.902 -88,602,211Balance As at July l, 2015

100,475,260100,475,260Development Grant
485,000485,000Donations Grants

-s.287.277-5,287,27'lRevenue Reserve

-t04,093,172-104,093,172Surplus (deficit) for the Year

2,761,177,496-197,982,6662,959,160,162Balance As at June 30,2016

18.143.280Development Grant

76,913,244Revenue Reserve 16,913,244

-7,520,608

l8 143 280

-7.520,608Assets Adiustrnent Reserves

-60.474.983 -60,414,983Deficit for the Year
2.788.838,429-181,544,4052,970,382,834Balance As at June 30,2017

3l ,'
.--. i\.(,



TIi/-Ifi\i li=Ai IIN!rt./t--Dr'trrt At tl t.^ tF,trL/rL utr, / nttJl I I ItI, lyll,ilyIIJAS,A
Reports and Financial statcment.s For the year en(led .Iune 30, 2017

XIV STATtrNTBN'T OF CASII FLOWS AS A'I'30 JUNE 2017

CASII AND CASI.I EQT,iIVALENI'S AT BECINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQtjtVALEN-I.S A.I. END OF yEAII

?01(t

Kshs.

'7 994 98.s

to7 2t

453 ao A^' A

t1 o,t'r

t3

64.\2?, 930

7

I'ROI,-. l./tll.A tiwl.lSO .\Bt iBAKAR

,\(;. \,t(Il CIIAN(rELt,OR / (totiNCIt. st,tCRtt't AI{\,

SI(;N

,,.r,,, /.8

(]P,,{ AI,F REI) INI)I](;I IIi

lilNAN(r[] Ot'!'tCI.tR

l(lP.\l( Nl Iti\llllil{ N t I IVtI}t.tt: 7tt23

i;, i;, laug \€rn'r'r

DR. KE\II1'I)8S,,\I

\
COTIN('IL ('IIr\IR]\I

SI(;N.,

D,\.t'[.

-Slr.ts,b
\sltl,eor&

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIN(; ACTIV. ITI ES
n &'4f,-Ip'r's

GOVI]RNMENT GRAN IS ANI) SUtsSIDIES 3
OTHER INCOMUS

4
I'UITION FEES

5

PAYMENTS

PERSONAL EMOLUMENTS
6

COUNCII, EXPENSES
7

OPERATING /A DM INISTRAI'ION F,X PENSES 8-|EACHING 
EXPENSIS

9
STTJDENTS WET,TTARE l0
REPAIRS & MAINI'ENANCI] lr
INCREASEiDECIIEASIJ I NVENTORI ES t5
AUDIT FEES t4,IRADE 

RECEIVABI,T]S
l6&17.fRADE 

PAYABLES
2t&22

NET CASH FLOWS FITOM OPERATING ACT IVITIES
CASTI FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Pt{OPEt{'t'Y,PLANT' & EQtjtPMENt t2
INTANGIBE Z\SSEI'S

r3
INCREASEiDECREASE IN I NVESTI MTTNTS t9&20
GAIN/LOSS ON I'UMEL 4
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING AC'IIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACT'IVITIES
LONG-'fERM I.IAt] I LI'I'IES

23
CAPITAL FUND

24
OTHER FUNDS & RESI]RVES ,<

20t7

Kshs.

149 9

)7? 617 t62

53 74'? 58

I 18.482.969

1,004,356,139 966,305,561

13,54t,e77 t3,597 ,182
t86,646,559 ltt 5 7i',l

23 75 t.l9-s

5 76,919

_ -- _239,800,000

_ __t3,690,778*
18,20 i ,3 te _ tr,l!J,4)i_

1,488,234-1s,390,814

l, r60,000 l, r60,000

1,019,554 -J J iOoJ.()J+
7t ?oa 01? ,14 t.a ao,-)wr\t) L,zo+

1,534,324,260 1,323,566,443

-15,841.291 89,063.499

-s7,858,401 _:_123)t!2Lt)t
0

25.84 1.0-53

-181.42c)

22.279.60s

0 0

-36,360,225 -97,301,059

-20,t40,952 82,691,233

18,143,280 r00,960,260

76 9t3 -s,287.217

75,515,572 178,370,216

23,314,056

234,325,587

257,639,643

1l

l),.\'il.]
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TIiCIINICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
I{enorts and Financia! Sfa-tcments For the vcn:.enr!er! .Irrnc 10, 2c!7

XVI. NOTI.',S TO THf FINANCIAL ST,TTBh,lUii'I'S

I. GENBRAL INFORMATION
Technical [-lniversity of Mombasa is established b.r,ancl <Jerives its authority and accountabilit],, tl.orn
Ilniversity Charter. The entity is u,hcll)' ou'ncd bi, the Covcrnnieut ol Kcn-.va and is domiciled in
Kenya. The entity's principal activity is tcachi'g a,cl research.

STATBMEi{T OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF'I'Ii.BPARATION

'fum's finaltcial staternents have been prcparecJ in accordance with and comply with International
Public Secttlr Accorrnting Standards (IPSAS). The financial statements are presenterl in [isny3.
shillings' rvhich is the functional and reporting currcncy of the entity. The accounting policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented.

The financial statements have been preparcd on the basis of historical cosL, unless stated otherrvise.
I'he cash flow statement is prepared using the direct rnethocl. l'he financial statements are prepared on
accrual basis.

3. SUMIVIARY OF SIGNII..ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIBS

a) Revenue recognition

,:\ D^-,^-..^ f--^_- --.._. ru r\EyEUlrc rt urtr tru[-txc[allge transactlons
'l'ransfcrs from other government entitics
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other governrnent entities are tneasured at fair value
and recognized on obtainiiig coutrol oi'Lhc asset (casli" goocis, services and property) ifthe transfer is
free fiorn conditions and it is probable that the econonric benefits or service potential related to the
asset will flow to the entity and can be measurecl reliably.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions
Rendering of sentices

Tum recognizes revenue frorn rendering of'services by ret-erence to the stage of completion when the
outconte of thc transaction can bc cstimated rcliably. T'hc stage ol-contpletion is measured by reference
to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of'total estimated labour hours,

Where the contract outcome cannot be nteasured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extcnt
that the cxpenses incurred are recoveratrle.

2

(rl



TECHNICAL ANIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30' 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT...)

Interest tncome

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts estimated

future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income each period.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-

line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue'

b) Budget information
The original budget for FY 2016-2017 was approved by the Council on l3tl'July 2016'The

University's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in

the financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification

based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is

prepared on a cash basis. The amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis

io t-he cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget. A

comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is

then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actualamounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made

for differences in the formats and classification schernes adopted for the presentation of the financial

statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of

comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance

has been presented under section xxx of these financial statements.

7 ll:'. ': .



TECIINICAL UNIVERSITY OII MOMBASA
Ilcports and Financiat Statements For (hc yeai- eniled ,iuric .30, 20i 7
NOTES 1'0 THE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CON,I....)

c) Investment property
Invcsttlcttt pl'operties are measurcd initiall,v- at ct)st, inclucling transaction cosls.'l-he carrving
anroul'lt includes tlre replacernent cost of cornponents o1-an existing investment property at the tirnerh.r -^.^-+ :.. :--...--^f, '^ 'trrdr' uusl ls lnsurreQ li illc rccogtlittott uril.cria are mct an,C excludes the costs of day-to-clav
maintenancc of an invesitr)cni propei-ry.

Inrrecf monf 
^r^6^4r, ^rr:"'ritrrrtrri! propen)'acquired tlirough a nou-exchange transaction is rncasured at its fair value at the

date of acquisition. Sttbscquent to inirial recognition, investment properties are rneasured using lhe
coqt mndel anA o,o.lo^-^^i^+^J ^,..... ^ .nr uLlrr!vrorvu uvsr A JU_).gal p€fl()(l.

lnvestment properties are derecognizecl either rvhen they have been dispose,c of or when the
investment properly is pcrmanentll'u'ithdrar','n from usc and no fuirrrc uL,unomic berreflt nr service
potential is expected frorn its disposal. The difference bet*,een tlie net disposal proceeds an6 the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or cleficit in the period of de-recognitiori.
'lransfers are made to or fi'om investment properly onl,y when there is a change in use.

d) Propertyr plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulatecl depreciation and irnpairment
losses' Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the itenis. Wlrcn
significant parts of property, plant and equioment are reqr_1i1sd to bc replaced at iltervals, the ei-rtity
rccognizes such parts as iridividual assets with specillc useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly' Likewise, when a ntajor inspection is perforrned, its cost is recognized in the carrying
atnount of the plant and equipment as a repiacenlent if the recognition criteria are satisfied, A II other
repair and maintenance costs are recognizecl in surplus or deficit as incurrcd. where an asset is
acquired in a nort-exchange transaction tbr nil or nominal considcration the asset is initiallv
measured at its tair value.

ASSETS RATES.

Building 2%

I"urniture lA%

Computer 30%

Plant & Equip l0%

Motor Vehicle 20%

nl
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e) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially all of the risl<s and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the

corlmencernent olthe lease at the fair value of,the leased property or, if lower, at the present value

of the future minimum lease payments. The lrntity also recognizes the associated lease liability at

the inception of the lease. T'he liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future

minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between flnance charges and

reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance

of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as flnance costs in surplus or def-rcit'

An asset held under a finance lease is clepreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there

is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease

term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease

term.

Operating leases are leases that cJo not trernsf'er substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operatirrg lease payments are recognized as an operating

expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over thc lease term.

f) Intangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are initialty recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Following

initial reoognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated arnortization and

accumulated impairrnent losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized

development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is ref'lected in surplus or deflcit in the period

in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

g) Research and develoPment costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are

recognized as intangible assets when the l3ntity can demonstrate:

sale

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost Iess any accumulated

amortization and accumulated irnpairment lclsses. Arlortization of the asset bcgins when

developrnent is cornplete and the assct is availablc fbr use. It is amortized over the period o{'

91" .,
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F'xpectcd ltrture bencfit. During the periorJ ol development. the asset is tesred {br impairrnent
annuallv rvitlt arr;"'itnpairr,reitt losses rrcognizecl irnmediatciy in surpius or.,lefrcit.

h) h'inanciai instruments
Financiol assets

Initial recogn iiion antl meas urement
Financial assels within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financiel lnsirumeriis: Rccrgrritit-rn and iVieasurcmcnt
are classifieci as financial assets at fair 

"'alue 
through surplus or deficit, luafls and reccivabies, heici-

to-maturitv invesfments or available-t-or-sale fina;rcin! asscts, as apiliiiuriaic.'iire Entirl, cictermines
the classiflcalit-rn r)l-its financial assets at initia! recognition.

Loons und rcceivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets ivitlr i-ixed or dcterrninable payrieuts that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such flnancial assets are subsequently
tneasurcd at atnortized cost using the effuctive interest rnetlrod, less impairment. Amortizecl cost is
calculated by tal<ing into account any cliscount or premium on acquisition anci f'ees or costs that are ar..I
integral part of the eff'ective irrterest rate. Losses arising frorn impairment are recognized in the surplus
or deficit.

IIeld+o-muturity
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or clelermina-1,!e pay'rncnts and fixed rnaturitics arc classiile,i
as held to Inaturity u'ltetr the Entity has the positive intention and ability to hold it to maturity. Alter
initial measurelrent, Ireld-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. less impairmcnt. Amortized cost is calculated bv taking into account any rJiscount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part ol'the effective interest rate. l-he
Irsses arising frorn irnpairmcnt arc reoognized in surplus or deficit.

Impuirment o/ /inoncial assels

'fhe Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is ob-lective evidence that a financial asset or
a entity of firrancial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a entity of financial assets is dcerned to be
irnpaired if' and only if, there is ob.iective cvidence olirnpairment as a resLrlt of one or morc events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event
has an irnpact on the estilnated future cash flows of the financial asset or thc entity of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairrnent may include the following indicators:
'r 'l'he debtors or a entity of debtors are experiencing significant flnancial 6if ficulty

r 1'lie probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization
'/ observablc data indicates a measurable decrease in estimatecl future cash llor,r,s (e.g. clranges rn

arrcars or cconomic conclitions that correlate u,ith clefaLrlts)

t0l
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Financial liabilities
I nitial recognilion and meos urement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value

through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Entity determines the

classification of its f-rnancial liabilities at initial recognition'

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrorvings,

plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowing
After initial recognition, interest bearing Ioans and borrowings are subsequently measurcd at

amorlized cost using the effective interest rnethod. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or de ficit

when the liabilities are derecognized as well as thror-rgh the effective interest method amortization

process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and f-ees

or costs that are an integral part of the effbctive interest rate.

i) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial rccognition. 'l'o the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (fbr no cost or fbr a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its

fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted lbr. as

follows:

rnanufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. However.

to the extentthat aclass of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal charge,

that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the

estirnated costs of completion and the estimated costs ltecessary to make the sale, exchange, or

distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed fbr utilization or consumption in the ordinary

course of operations of the Entity.

1l | ;',, I l
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NO'I'ES TO THE TTINANCIAI, STATENTENTS (CON'I"..)

j) I'rovisions

Provisiotts arc rccognized when tlre Entity has a present obligation (legal or consl.rucl"ive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic henefits or ser.rice
potentialwili be reqriired to settle the obligation and a reliable estimatc can bc ma,lc of tlie auiourrt,['
the ohligatiorr
\t/h^.^ rL,. u-+:r, ^^.--^ ^-- -triv truic Lrru trrtit! c)ipccts soine or all of a provision to be rcirnburseci, for example, undcr an insurance
contract, the rcin:burscrnetti. is recogttizecl as a separate assct oniy when the reirnbursement is virtuallv
ceftain.

Tlte expense relating to any provision is presentccl in the statement of financial perfornrance net of
any reimburscmcnt.

C o nti n ge nt I iu h il ities
The Entity does not recognize a contingent liabilitv, but discloses cletails of any contingencies in the
t.tol'cs ltl the financial statcments, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources ernbodying
econor.r.ric bencflts or servicc potential is renrote.

Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose
existencc is contingent on the occurrence or non-ocourrence of one or lnore uncertain fluture events
not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial staternents. Contingent asscts
are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately rcflected in the financial
statements. If it has become virlually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potcntial
..,ilt ^.:-,, ^^i ,ilvrri dirss iliru rilc asset's value catt be rneasureci reliably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognized in the' financial statements of thc pcliod in which the change ooours.

h) Naturc aud purpose of reserves

Thc lintity creates and rnaintains reserves in terms of specific requiremen Ls. Entit.y to ,ttale thc reserue.r
mctintained ctnd appropriatc policie.s adopled.

l) Changes in accounting policies and estimates

'l'he Entity recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. 'l'he effects o{.
changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application is impractical.

m) Employee benefits

Retiremcnt bencfit plans

'l'he llntity provides reLirement benefits for its employccs and directors. Dellrrecl contribution plans
arc post-cll'lployrnettt beneljI plans under rvhich an entity pays tixed contributions into a separare
cntity (a fund.1. and will have no lcgal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions il.the
lirnd does not hold sufficicnt assets to pay all ernployee benefits relating to ernployee service in the
currcnt and prior periods-'T'hc contributiotis to fiLncl obligations l-or the payment of retiremcrt bencfjts
arc chargccl agairrst incornc in the yeai'in rvliich they bccome payable.

t2l
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Detlned benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than deflned-contribution plans. 'fhe

deflned benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis.

Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on

proportional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lurnp sulrt payments reduce

the post-employment beneflt obligation.

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date

of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reponed at the

statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Ilxchange

diffi:rences arising frorn the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates difl'erent

from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as incotne or

expenses in the period in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and equipmcnt.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or

constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of'the asset

is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

p) Related parties

T'he Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control inclividually

or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice vcrsa. Members of' kcy

management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO and senior managers.

q) Service concession arrangements

T'he Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arranger.nents that it enters into in determirring

the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirernents. In particular, where a private party

contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset whcn. and only whcn, it

controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must

provide thern, and at what price. In the case olassets other than'whole-ol--lilb'assets, it controls,

through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in thc asset

at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so recognized are tneasured at their krir value. To the extent

that an asset has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a

cash consideration paid or received.

tJl
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r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash a[ banl<, short-term deposits op call and
hi-qhl-v liqrrid invcstlrents r.x.,i1l 311 criginal rrurtrrr!ti of thrcc inoirths or less. rvhich are readiiy
convcrtiblc to kttown al.ll()trllts crf cash attd are sub.iect to in.signiticant risk of'changcs in .,,alue. Bank
accouttt balarrccs include amounts held at the Central lJank ot'Kenya ancl at variogs commercial
banks at the end of the linancial year. For the purposes ofthese financial statements, cash and cash
equivalents also include short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public oftjcers and/or
institutions rvltich were not surrencjered or acoounted for at thc cnd ot'the financial year.

s) Comparative figures

Wherc necessar\i conrparative figures fbr the previous firrancial year have bcen amended or
reconfigured to confonn to the required changes in presentation.

1. SIGNIFTCANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCtrS OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

I'he preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires tnanagement
to make .ludgments, estimates and assumptions that aff-cct the reported amounts of revenues.
expcrlscs, assets and iiabiiities, and the disclosure ot'contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting
-- -.-: - -l r rpcl ioo. iluwever, unccnalllty about these assumpttons and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustrnent to the carrying arnount of the asset or liability affected in future periods
State all.iudgements, estirnates and assurnptions lnade: e.g

Estimates and assumptions
'I'he kc1' assttmptions concerning the future and other l<ev sourccs of estiniatiol uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a sigrrificant risk of causing a material acljustrnent to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are dcscribed below. The Entity based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements werc
prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change
duc to market changes or circumstances arising beyonci the control of the Entity. Such changes arc
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IITSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values
'l'hc usefirl lives and residual values ol'assets are assessed using the following indicators to infbrrn
potential lLrture use and value from disposal:

proccsses

t.l 
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Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.

Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 16.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the

obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

(include provisions applicable for your organisation e.g provision for bad debts, provisions o.f'

obsolete stocks and how management e.stimates these provisions)

u) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017.

3b) Transfers from Ministries, Departments and Agencies

2017 2016

3. GOVERNMENT GRANTS Kshs. Kshs

Recurrent grants received 749,122,549 760.994.985

TOTAL 749,t22,549 760,994,985

Name of the
Entity
sending the
grant

Amount
recognized to
Statement of

Comprehensive
lncome

KShs

Amount
deferred

under
deferred

income
KShs

Amount
recognised in
capital fund.

Total grant income
during the year

201 5-20 I 6

KShs KShs KShs

Ministry ol
Education 749,t22,549 0 0 749.t22,549 760,994,98s

Total 749.122.s49 0 0 749.122.549 760.994.985

t5;: ,:
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l)rollt on [)isnosal ot'Assets

l'cndcri l;ee s

Adnri nistrative l-'ccs

I\,1 iscci larrcous I rlconrc
.I'OTAI,

2017 _2Q16

Kshs.Ks4.OTI{ER INCOJVIE

Registration Fce I 1,708,e68 8,43 3,548

41,424.b48 43,8.12,344

10.690.57s. 13,868,910

r4,,s60.950 l?,054,124

55.030 LL-4 I l)

Lt l,ttJ 6 / 6.6yU

22.346.015 16.355.225

t2.340.366

23,663,972

l-a-.--,1r' '
I ilrcr ilitt r:.\all illtauuns

I j br nr'1, Ler.'1,

Students hostel l'cc

t-i Fi nes

Academic

lVlerlical [,ev

Industrial Attachment

IC'I

Academic 28.600 1 2.1 50

7,e-53i2f_

20,307,718

10,157,283 10,489,176

257.200

7,750

I 75.300

9,560

Studcnt I Ioliday Accontniodat lon

'feach Materials

cation Fce

Student l{eadmission Fcc

Maintenance L

P Fce

0 1.000

3.114.7 55l .7 10. 150

3 I 1.875 45.625

I,759,553 7 ,7 86,1' t

Lost Iterrrs 38,940 57,790
(iraduation lree

(lcuter' [:ees

600

7 993 8r 920

78 750Penalties

MaLerials 34,200 123,200

Oaterins Income Cateri ng 8,554,994 7,604,897

2 r,539.881 18,446.I l0

2.996.170 .1.45 1,408

Kiziwi Guest House income

Iixternal Rcsearch Inconre

'l'rai Restaurant lncome

t9.2t4.499 2.028.050

Consul Iree I 15,200 t,477.600
Administrativc Rescarch Income 2.200 I 4.550

Student ID 0 2l,185

_ _120,01q

1.440.615

397 336

4,800,003

* ___ 6ruq!_
139.643

7.651,982

2,943,736

Incomel)hotoco &

I{ent Income

Ilire ol'Facilities

llire ol'Transport

3,648.169 3.35 1.250

I ntelcst on Investlnent

Stall'tfaini

1.477,850 |.332,293

0 400.600

6.000

5q I 7l.l

0

6il 667

485 964

63.000

197 t 4.L

16 I

l3 toL
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2017 20t6

5. TUITION FEE Kshs. Kshs

'Iuition Fee ar Central Vote 100,592,287 s0.6s2.932

Tuition Fee Module II Central Vote 428,076,848 394,102.s54

Tuition Fee LAMU 7,078,123 8,526,750

'[uition Fee Ukunda 0 610,390

Total 535.747.258 453,892,626

2017 2016

6. PERSONAL EMOLUMENTS Kshs Kshs.

Basic Salaries
433,308,997 407.982,160

House Allowance
246,145.472 232,765.134

Medical Insurance
87,098,91 6 75.206.870

Pension Employers Expense
61,732,778 64.709,786

NSSTT E
2,04s,410 2,134,700

r.ife
0 4,508,3 54

Resnonsibility Allowance
14,97 I ,000

1 3.{t65,93 2

Non Allowance
2,652,000 2,412,000

Profcssorial Allowance
480,000 420,000

Te Allowance
7,939,960 7,100,710

Acti Allowance
I,079,058 244,439

S ial Allowance
603,607 522,257

M nt Allowance
22,661,334 22,047.166

Book and Research Allowance
2,936,000 2.628,000

Gratuities
7,452,773

I 9,656, 120

[,eave Allowance
9,531,141 8.728,607

Comm Allowance
46,s40,64s 47,9 t0,08 I

Car Allowance
32,410,748 30,918.617

Entertainment Al lowance
n,332,498 I1,258,667

EI & water A
4,098,530 3,850,629

and B Allowance
1,052,946 385.50 t

Domestic Workers Allowancc
1,270,000 r.063.333

Ilisk Allowance
304.250

3 73.55 0

Dxtraneous Allowancc
5.7 67 ,536 5.5 l7,94tt

I I ardsh Allorvance
94 t.1 40 95,000

TOTAL I,004,356,739

l7|l'riL,,'
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7. COTINCIL EXPI'NST]S

siui Allor,;ancc

r\uu,.rrlrrnuciation z\ I lou.ancc

l-ra,"'cll  ll^.-,,.----

\,1 ; lcage Allolvance

Lnatlrnan s /\Ito\\,ancc

Chanccl lor's A I lor,r,ancc

.TOTAI.,

Stafl' Dcvelopmcnt and'l'rain Ccnlr'al Vote

Sla I'l' Wcl tarc Ccntral Vote

sraf l'I) llu Scltelrc Ccntral Vote

20t7

2,1 08

1827

(l als

astc Collection Scrvices A

l)urchasc ol' (ias arrcl flrcrl,ood

I)urchase ol' tltensils bedd ings & fiui

I'ulchase ol' Iiroclstu fl.s

VcIr i c I c. i,lcqr19yry1!,, rp". l! q: 
-i 

rrr1spgr_ r

Vch icle: I n:;urarrr:c'l nlrsnrlr.L

o

626 242.7 45

ztJl6
Kshs.

4 60,000

Kshs.

4,567,000

3.7 67 .00(l :1.546.400

2.438,379 1,200,942

445

I 33r

.t 7 v..,4r,

78-3.000

000

I I 977

r.000.000

2017 2016
8. ADMINISTRATIV E/OPERATING EXPENSES Kshs. Kshs.

381 9t2 31344

I r.663.308 l0 e48

j 771 7
Maintenancc ol Vehicles

Ijucl and oils

['ravc] and Subsistcncc

CasLral

929 708 373
Otllce Stati

146.735 079I

111 ola

94 70

171

,r.558.271

0

3.s90.447

['hotocopyi rlg

('orr Station

Scrvicc Cha Kizirvi (iucst l-louse

Advertisi and I'ublicit
76J 89t I 089 029

and [)ublishPrinti
8 200 J I 792

8s8 997 8

t? 9
Shorvs and llxhibitions l{escarch

N,cu,spapels _

I ilectric
78I 9 l9

401

028

I I 184

scs Centrtrl Vote

Water and Con

(iraduation Ex t7s6 79

1.207 749,3r{.1
es ol'lktards and Comnrittees

Ot'{lcial I :ntertainrncnt

I 1,66(r 50 I0- l4l t74

5575

2 800

II6:! 72 7

.). I J.+

I ._s44.3 85

6.153.27-s

183.452

7 7t5

33 8

2 29.88 r

a1 Lal 1,t/J l.\'&(,--+()

719.3(r5

7t 714

2.795.890

l8l

ccorrrmodation

)

r.Jtry,.+z-1
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3.344,4048,917,726Gencral Insurance Central Vote

1,874.5991,685,7 t7Ilank s

4,239,985 4,817,205ment ol Rent and I{atesP

r.85r,9r0I ,841,828StalT IJniforms

3 57.3 801 40,1 00In house Buildi I'Iuman Resource

3,096,6962,509,960(iovcrnance

1,83 I,I l01,614,245Subscri Fce

9,574,686 8.456.085Prof essional Services Central Vote

r3,886,320 8,620,700Scrvicesllire ofSecuri

2.244,2002,797,064Services Central VoteHire of Clean

210,000 729,530Centlal VoteFuneral

64,786 46,800CSR Donations Central Vote

55r,7r6 67 1,1 80Postal and Courier Serviccs

I,370,935801,797Central VoteT

6,71s.256r 0,9 l3,48 Inse Central VoteI nterest

80,50020.000FIire of facilitics

218,6580Closed1'IJM

177,435,733186,646,559TOTAL

2017 2016

9. TEACHING EXPENSES Kshs. Kshs.

L ses 2,509,475 1.68 r.462

Purchase ol'l'each Materials I 3.660,302 9,346.204

Curriculum and Devel ent 5 .621 ,39 | 1,997,845

Aoademic t26,700 l.868,0s0

Maintenance Hardwale and Networks 210,000 487,6s2

I ntcrnct Dircctorate of ITCS 15.290.876 t5,685,379

Maintenance Sotlware Directorate ol' I]'CS 1.769,000 4.438,894

Internal Research 4,957,196 2,962,873

External Rcsearch E 2.032,125 ) qqq 1'7'7

I)art time Teachi t54.728,020 t62,964.503

Produotion t5,914,297 t2,052,397

Examination Materials strar AA 6,154,649 6,88[i,441

External Examiners 6.72t,168 5,351.til9

Co 5,256.238 4.148,586

lS() Certillcation

Publications and Conlerenccs Rescarch

838.900 r,49 I ,277

145,960 422,715

Accreditation 0 233,000

Industrial Attachment 3,tr63,703 3.730,421

TOTAL 2J9,800,000 238,751 ,29s

19 ll'r,:i ,



TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial statcments For the year entle<! June 30, 2017
NOTES TO THI.I FINANCIAL SI.ATBMENTS (CONT...)

IO. STUDENTS WEL FARE EXPENSES

Cuidance and Counselli Dean Of Studcnts

Activities Dean Of Students

l'l ,MSt-l Elections Dean Of St.udents

TOTAL

2016

Kshs

2017

Kshs

3,809,670

tE.62q_ 39s.59.5

J.+oz.ov.i

904,744

7.380. I 09 0

970.096

Student Work stud P

Music anci Drama L)ean ol SLr"rdents

ir4edicai Clinic i lvlediuai

305,635 r35.215

985,930 5 10,320

13.690.778 5,476,919

7 2016

Kshs.
II. REPAIRS AND MAI NTENANCE

Is and Maintenance
3t7

Kshs.

I 08r
Maintenance of Buildi and Stations 9 17 822 13 813
Maintenance of

721 966 I I

TOTAL
t9 1

ztJ 
I
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TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statenrents Fcr llic ,vsill cnclecl June 30, 2017

NOTE-q TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coNT...)

13. INTANGIBI,E ASSETS

0penine Balance

Additicrns

r\cc. Amortization Computer Sottware

BALANCE C/F

I4. AUDIT FEES

Audit lccs

TOTAL

TO1'AL

'72

20li 2016

Kshs. Kshs.

I ).v,t,t.)) I 1.5,r44,5-5 I

781,429 0

-15,2s3,079 -t4.r91.343

!.753.208

2017 2016

Kshs. Kshs.

I , r 60,000 r.160.000

r,r 60,000 I ,I 60,000

2017

Kslrs.

Inventories &'lourism
I ,7 87 ,019

5 55.398 1,220,812

Inventorics Mechanical lneen 155 974

I .l 75.665

1,579,191

5.379.238lnvcntories I Iealth [Jnit

lnventories Adm ini stration

Inventorics [r,lectlical

I nventories ied & Health Science

Inventories []usiness & Social studics

1,277,252

t5.265

2,t 19,984

224-648

2,275.957 3,092,90s

_ 247.889

39 390

43,707

-165,190
lnventorics Medical ent

Ittventories IC'['S

Inventories l,i

Invcntories Iluildi & civil u Ineen

Invcntories Kwale Campus

Inventories Lamu Cla

Inventorics Registry

lnvcntorics Student scrvices

lnventories 'l'ranspolt & l-ogistics

3.994.946

12,466

100,0 I 3 276,474

22,470 237.1t3

762.034 724.341

53.203 326.014

2.440,095

2.362.386

3,83s,476

1.036,326

691,44 I 132.982

t 4,005,I 58 29,395,972

i
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TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30,2017
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT...)

18. Cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016

I6. RBCEIVABLES F'ROM EXCT{ANGE TRANSACTIONS Kshs. Kshs.

61,82t,604I'repaid Insurances 36,765,870

Dcposit Contingcncy 725.000 725,000

(lcneral'l-rade receivables 838.477 838,477

Studcnt Debtors 57,423,118 31,2 18, l]9
1'lVlll Ilursaries MOI IIIS'| 696,53 r 696,51l

Guest Accommodation Debtors I r,378. r63 7 .t92.7 48

1'TJMI]i, DEI}1'ORS 0 561 ,090

Stalf Medical Debtors 120.776 t42.974

Stafl'Salary Advances 225,138 241.t43

Rent Arrcars 0 53,5 30

LI]SS PROVISION -35.4t0.246 -27,957,144

TOTAL 72,762.827 77,534,$92

2017 2016

I7. RECEIVABLES FROM NON EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS Kshs. Kshs.

Stall'Imprest 3.144.874 2.859.08 r

Other Debtors 1.400,470 3.348,546

TOTAL 4,545,344 6,207,621

2016-20t7 20 r 5-201 6

Financial institution Account number KShs KShs

a) Current account
National Bank Current Account I 0r021007510800 2.471.145 681,906

National Bank Current Account II 0r021007510801 4,451,593 2,566,455

Co-orlerative Bank Fees collection Account 0r r29079001600 15,650,307 17.0 12.300

Standard Chart Bank Fees collection Acc. 0102092728000 22.428,493 22.418.660

KCB Lamu Satellite Carnpus r r r8817 192 13,823,71I 7,226,738

Family Bank Research A/C 0960000 I 5735 19.5 t3 .41 | 8t2 890

8,644,484KCB KiziwiGuest House fi26859206 24,053,3s3

Equity Fees Collection a/c 04602978 r 8058 10,36s,285 I0,094,138

Development A/C Standard Charlered t02092128001 8.505J22 t,496,941

NBK Econornic Stimulus Programme 01038007510800 67.699.180 t20,t31,566

NBK fees collection a/c 0103807421 r700 t0.425.069 24,304,522

NBK GOVSEA Proiect 0 I 020036 152900 0 5.130.s44

KCB Fees Collection AiC I t69329518 I r,875.857 6.432,608

Barclays Fees Collection A/C 2034098894 36.37s,457 r38,l6r

Sub- total 257,639,643 227,697,913

Cash in transit

Sub- total
Grand total

0 6.627.674

0 6,627,674
234,325,587251,639,643

23 lr':, .' -



TECHNICAI, UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Sfatements For the year ended .Iune 30, 2017
NOTBS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT...)

I'. SIIOR'T-TERM INVEST]VIEN TS
l-ixed Deposit UFCK

TOTAI,

Shares in Consolidated Bank

Seed Money I'tJM llnterprises

Irixed Deposit National Bank of Kenya

TOTAL

TOTAI,

-f VE'l' InstitLrtions

I IIiI,R

CI)F

Othcr [)epositols

LAI']SSII'l'r'elirnds

24

-l l8 550

2016

-3 I -550

-(,o I .02(r

-4 83.000

t.'"t,-

1Q r0

0 I

5

IGhs.

2011
zu, Lt i\t - I LKiVI li\ ! lts I ivltiN't's Kshs.Kshs.

5

5 571 938 571 38

752.4A0 3

2017 2016

Kshs I(shs.

..,,1 (\A')
IJ

2I. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Ceneral'l'radc Payables

Plior' 1'ear tradc creditors
0

S]'UDEN'f CRI]DITORS
605-t 050

r82 l3t

2017 2016
22. O'I'HER CREDI TORS Kshs. Kshs.
PAY[:, Dcductions

-39,385,391 -19.746,349

- 14,308
VAI'Retaincd

Income "l ax Withholding
-1,035,472

_ _--lll!8
-638.740

-2.917.852 -2.342,649
VA1'Clearing

Student Union Fee
-15.3r9 -397.635

Studcnt IJcnevolent [.'und
-285.970

Accrued Payables
-4,224.t78

- I 18.880

-l.l t4.l3l
- l3 I .500 -t22.500

Rent Dcposit

lJnclainrcd Wages
-203,780 -203,780

-8 t 6,47 5 -937 .67 5

KUCCPS Levv

CLJE L.cvv
-3 .579.37 s -996. I 95

- ltt,7(r9.410 -7l.ot2.o7 t

-64.037 -33.5 85

241
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-596.272 -596.272

0 -30,205Irxternal Examinations - KMTI,B

-9.1700External Examinations - KASNEII

-s04.4780External Examinations - KNEC

0 -90,457Relund to Ceneral Dcbtors

- 1 97.1 35-3.096,533Pension Deductions/Contributions

01,350NSSF Payables

200 0NHIF Payables

0- l ,070,013Poly Sacco

-25t,499 -252,301StaffBenevolent Fund

-1,056,351 0Loan Payables Barclays

37.715 - 1 46.1 00l'rade Unions Payables

-84,293, I 30-t5.7 54,675Other Payables

-20,039,915 - 15,534.7 l4Retentions Payable

-57.700-2.37 t,6011'UMIIL Payables

0-30,200Insurance Payablcs CFC l"if'e Insut'ancc

-2,000 0Insurance Payables ICEA

0- I ,500Insurance Payables Kenindia

0-5,001Insurance Payables UAP lnsurancc l-td

-4,500 0lnsurance Payables CIC GROUP

-3,226,t8j-6,853,422Mwalimu SACCO

0-1,288,354Loan Payables KCB

-1,475.582 - 1.130,451Net Pay

-r,r60,000Provision for Audit Fees - 1.160,000

- I.334-t,334Salary Advance Relund

-2,000 -2,300Post Llank Shares

-206.393,004-t34,2t4,905TOTAL

TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended .Iune 30,2017
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Foreign Exarninations CI [,1'

NB: Under other creditors, the amount for tvct institutions is capitation received from the

government in trust for development of Technical institutions. Kindly note that in the

financial ye^r 201612017, the University received an amount of Kshs 11,553,279

2017 2016

23. LONG TERM LIABILITIES Kshs. Kshs

Students Caution Money -12,976.t78 -9.322.548

Long term Service GratuiLy -t 1,957 ,719 -t7,652,30t

Bank [,oan -63.350,000 -8 1.450.000

TOTAL -88,283,897

25 I

49



2017

I(sh.s. Kshs,
24. FUND
B/F

Grant
1 I 75

Don Grants
0 48

ustment 7
C/F

20t7 20t6
25. OTHER & RESERVES Kshs. Kshs.

B/F
-197,982.666 7

MOVEMENTS

Revenue Reserve 76,913,244 -5,287.277

-60.474.983 -104,093,172
SURPLUS FOR PERIOD

C/F
-181,544.405 -197,9E2,666

1

I
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I
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TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial statements For the year ended June 30, 2017

NOTRS TO THE FINAI\ICIAL STATEMENTS
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TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2017

XVII. PROGRESS ON F'OLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments
that were provided to the auditor, We have nominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as

shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be resolved.

1.0

2.0

3.t

3.3

I
l

1

I

l

Referen
ce No.
on the

external
audit

Renort

Issue /
Observations from
Auditor

Management comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue (Name

and
desisnation)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Put a date
when you
expect the
issue to be
resolved)

No supporting
schedules

The supporting
documents will always be

attached.

Alfred
Indeche (F.O) Resolved

Disclosure of
information btw
TUM and TUMEL

Resolved

- No evidence to
show that additional
land bought was
competitively
sourced.
- Land LR No.
Mombasa/Block/XI/
386 ownership is in
dispute

Not
Resolved

3.2
No approved
procurement plan

Ms. Susan
Wanjiru (

Procurement
Manager

Not
Resolved

Legal fees
Not
Resolved

3.4

3.5

Building on acquired
land is not valued.
Lease agreement for
hosting the telecom
mast not transferred
to the University.

The lease agreement was
signed

Serah
Esendi(Senior
Legal Officer)

Resolved

Furniture bought in
the year 201312014
did not have
evidence that they
were sourced
competitively

Ms. Susan
Wanjiru (

Procurement
Manager

Not
Resolved

3.6
Acquisition of TV
sets

The matter is before the
courts. The university is
waiting for the
determination of the

same.

EACC
Not
Resolved

3.7
Curtains,Napkins &
Mattresses classified
as PPE

These items to be

expensed.
Alfred

Indeche.(F.O.)
Resolved

27 l l'ri :-r .





Referen
ce No.
on the

external
audit

Report

Issue /
Observrtions from
Auditor

Management comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
issue (Nome

and
desisnation)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Project management
fees

Staff involved to be

surcharged
Alfred

Indeche(F.O)
Not
Resolved

3.8

3.9 Gotani fencing

The management to
pursue modalities of
acquiring the ownership
of the land

Prof. Rasowo,
Mr. Swaif

Not
Resolved

3.10
Fully depreciated
ASSETS

A revaluation of all assets

to be done to determine
their economic value.

Alfred
Indeche(F.O)

Partly
Resolved

4.0
Long term
investment

Financial Statements of
Tumel to be disclosed.

Alfred
Indeche.(F.O)

Resolved

5.1 Student Debtors
Reconc il iation between
the two systems to be

done.

Alfred
lndeche (F.O).

Resolved

5.2
Provision for
doubtful debts

Aged analysis to be
provided.

Alfred
Indeche( F.O)

Resolved

6.0
Receivable from
Non exchange
transaction.

Not
Resolved

7.0 Other Creditors

Unpaid employer pension
of Ksh 39,195,284 being
followed by the
institution.

Vc
Not
Resolved

7.2
Long Outstanding
payables

These have been settled.
Alfred

Indeche(F.O)
Resolved

7.3 Other Payables

The accrued part time
was not expired hence the
outstanding balance of
39,91 4,1 34.This has been
corrected.

Alfred
Indeche(F.O)

Resolved

7.4 Statutory Deductions

VAT and Withholding
were all settled the
following which was
their due dates.

Alfred
Indeche (F.O) Resolved

8.t
Unrecorded
Variances

Sage Accpac and student
management system have
since been linked and
variances addressed.

Alfred
Indeche (F.O)

Resolved

8.2 KiziwiGuest House
There is a policy in place
on how production funds
are distributed.

Alfred
Indeche(F.O)

Resolved

9.0 Tuition Fees
Sage Accpac and student
management system have
been reconciled.

Alfred
Indeche(F.O)

Resolved

l0.l Medical [nsurance
Minutes are available
authorising increase of
premium payments.

VC Resolved

Re
TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA

rts and Financial Statements For the ended June 2017

Timeframe:
(Put a date
when you
expect the
issue to be
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TECHNICAL ANIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
rts and Financial Statements For the r ended June 3 2017

ffir hlf -Chancellor
N \

U
,^,"llla/- ltatt

Chairman of the

Date.

Referen
ce No.
on the

external
audit

Report

Issue /
Observdtions from
Auditorl

Management comments

Focal Point
person to

resolve the
isste (Name

and
desisnation)

Status:
(Resolved /

Not
Resolved)

Timeframe:
(Put a date
when you
expect the
issue to be
resolved)

10.2 Gratuities Schedule attached
Alfred

Indeche(F.O)
Resolved

I 1.0 Council Expenses
The matter is still being
followed by VC'S office

VC Resolved

12.0 Teaching Expenses
All part time teaches are
engaged using
appointment letters.

HR Resolved

r 3.0
Financial
Performance

The deficit has reduced to
69,982,160 as compared
to 104,093, 172 3Oth June
2016.

AIfred
Indeche(F.O)

Resolved

29 ll':roe



TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the year ended June 30, 2017

XVI[. Appendix l: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

Projects

Projects implemented by the State Corporation/ SAGA Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise the status of project completion ot the end of eoch quarter, i.e. total costs incurred,
stage which the project is etc.)

Project title Project
Number

Donor Period/
duration

Donor
commitment

Separate donor
reporting
required as per
the donor
agreement
(Yes/No)

Consolidated
in these
financial
statements
(Yes/No)

Project Total
project
Cost

Total
expended to
date

Completion
oh todate

Budget Actual Sources
of funds

I

2

3

30 I l':r r, .'





ENTITY NAME: TECHNICAL UNIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Break down of Transfers from the Ministry of Education

FY t6n7
a Recurrent Grants

Bank Statement
Date Amount (KShs) relate

Indicate the FY to
which the amounts

10108/20t6 62,426,879 201612017
2610812016 62,426,879
3010912016 62.426.879

09lt U2016 62.426.880
l4lt2l20l6 62.426.880
3011212016 61,826,877
0910212017 62,426,880
1510312017 62,426,880
0710412017 62,426,880
0310s12017 62,426,880
02106120t7 62,426.880
27106120t7 63,026,875
Total 749,122,549

b Development Grants

Bank Staternent
Date Amount (KShs)

Indicate the FY to
which the amounts
relate

3110512017 t8.743.280
Total 18.743.280

TECHNICAL ANIVERSITY OF MOMBASA
Reports and Financial Statements For the ycar ended June 30,2017

xIx. ndix 2: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

The above amounts have been cornmunicated to and reconciled with the parent Ministry
Finance Manager Head of Accounting Unit
Technical University of Mombasa Ministry C)f Education

Sign ---quo-lo S ign--------------

3l I
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